
Bidders Questions and Answers – Set 5 

 

1. Given that our license to operate derives directly from national legislation and a contract is non-
existing we are not able to provide you with “a certificate from the counterpart contracting party 
or regulator listing the criteria set forth in the operating experience and stating that such 
experience was carried out in a satisfactory manner”, we would like you to consider it sufficient 
to provide you with a (certified) translation of the applicable national legislation to comply with 
Schedule 4, Part A, sub 6 of the RfQ.  

 
Answer: We confirm that a certificate (which is a letter marked “certificate”) which contains the 
criteria and which states that such experience was carried out in a satisfactory manner is sufficient 
evidence. This is to be provided by the respective regulator or Minister that supervises the 
operations of the airport consistent with the applicable national legislation. The national 
legislation is not required. 
 

2. Regarding clause 7.1.2. The clause specified the printed original and the two (2) printed copies of 
the Prequalification Application shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by 
the Authorized Representative of the Prospective Bidder as set forth in the Prequalification 
Application. Can the Authorized Representative just sign the original, and can we make the two 
printed copies from the original already signed? Or is it necessary to sign the original and the two 
copies? 

 
Answer: We confirm that it is sufficient that the applicant signs the original then makes 
photocopies of the original (or in the case of the electronic copy, makes a pdf). The copies do not 
have to be signed again. 
 

3. Please clarify who is to certify the constitutional documents of the Prospective Bidder?  
 
Answer: We confirm that the Company Secretary can certify the constitutional documents. 
Alternately, the Authorized Representative or Counsel to the Bidder can also certify.  
 

4. Can counsel for the bidder certify the English translation of the constitutional documents of the 
Prospective Bidder?  
 
Answer: We confirm that Counsel to the bidder can certify the English translation of the 
constitutional documents. 
 

5. We intend to utilize the following organizational structure for the project: Company X would be 
the Prospective Bidder. Its participation in the Project would be through a new entity that would 
be a wholly owned subsidiary of Company X and that would own one hundred percent (100%) of 
the equity interest in the Concessionaire (the Barbados SPV). Company X would provide 
organizational and operational support to the Concessionaire. Would this structure meet the 
requirements set forth in Section 4.1.3 of the RFQ which requires that the Prospective Bidder own 
one hundred percent (100%) of the equity in the Concessionaire. 
 
Answer: We confirm that this structure would meet the requirements of 4.1.13 of the RFQ. 



 
6. Company X’s investments in construction projects at the Airport over the last 5 years has been 

$126,000,000… In the past Company X has undertaken substantial infrastructure projects at the 
Airport… during the last 5 years, Company X alone has only borrowed $108,600,000 because it 
has paid the bulk of its investments with internally generated funds. 

Since Company X is an experienced airport operator with significant experience in construction 
and destination development projects over its xx-year history and with a strong credit profile, 
would the Government of Barbados and Grantley Adams International Inc. consider modifying the 
technical and financial criteria to consider the particular circumstances of Company X. 

Answer: Please refer to Addendum Nr 6 of the RFQ, with respect to the Amendment to Clause 1.2 
(Technical Criterion n°2) of Schedule 3. We confirm that Financial Criterion no 2 can be satisfied 
with debt or equity financing, which includes the use of internally generated funds.  
 

7. We make reference to Schedule 3, Clause 2.2, Financial Criteria n°2 which states “… having 
financed at least one previous project of at least USD 150 million in the past 5 years” and Table 2 
of Annex 8. How to count for the amount of USD 150 million? Is it the total contract value of the 
performed works, for instance the value of the contract placed with a contractor, or the total 
amount of debt and equity raised to perform the project?  

Answer: We confirm that the USD 150 million is to be calculated as the total amount of debt and 
equity raised. 

 
8. By financing a project, do you mean financing a project company carrying the project, for instance 

a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) which has been incorporated in order to undertake the project, 
or the project itself, i.e. financing the works, namely paying contractors through debt and equity 
carried on the own balance sheet of the Prospective Bidder or Member in case of a Consortium 
or a Non-Sister Affiliate of those ? 

Answer: By financing a project, we mean that the Prospective Bidder, Member or Non sister 
Affiliate has raised debt and equity to finance capex and associated project costs for a project.  

 
9. If such a project has been financed in debt and equity, should the entity having financed the 

project in equity be also the borrower of the debt financing the project, i.e. the same company, 
in order to qualify as "having financed"? 

Answer: Yes 
 

10. If the equity and the debt can be provided by two different entities, namely the debt being 
borrowed by an SPV conducting the project of at least USD 150 million, and some of the equity 
provided by a company which intends to fulfill Financial Criteria n°2 for the purpose of this RFQ, 
namely that company being a shareholder of the SPV, should that SPV be a Non-Sister Affiliate - 
as per Clause 3.1 and 3.2 of Addendum 3 to the RFQ - of that company intending to fulfill Financial 
Criteria n°2 ? 

Answer: In this example, the SPV is raising the required debt and equity so the Prospective Bidder 
or Member will be using the references of the SPV. This SPV must thus be a Non-Sister Affiliate of 
the Prospective Bidder or Member.  
 



11. If the company intending to fulfill Financial Criteria n°2 is a shareholder of an SPV which has 
undertaken a project of at least USD 150 million and has been the lead sponsor to structure and 
raise the debt necessary to finance the project, but this is the SPV which is eventually the 
contractual borrower of that debt on its balance sheet, what minimum equity financing the 
project, in amount or in percentage, should the company intending to fulfill Financial Criteria n°2 
have provided to the SPV, or what type of relationship with the SPV should that company have, 
in order to qualify as “having financed” the project of at least USD 150 million ? 

Answer: We confirm that the SPV must be a Non-Sister Affiliate of the Prospective Bidder or 
Member. In other words, the SPV must be controlled by the Prospective Bidder or Member. Please 
refer to the definition of Control or Controlled in the RFQ. 

12. The “Prequalification Applications Opening” will be a ceremony open to the public? 

Answer: We confirm that the ceremony will not be open to the public. Per 8.1.1 of the RFQ, two 
(2) representatives of each Prospective Bidder shall be entitled to attend the opening of 
Prequalification Applications. 

13. Considering that the address for submission – as per the RFQ- is: GAIA PPP Project - Pre 
Qualification Documents / Grantley Adams International Airport Inc. / Terminal 1 Grantley Adams 
International Airport /Christ Church, in which exactly part of the airport will take place the 
Submission of the offers and where will be the Opening? 

 Answer: We confirm that the submission of offers will be made at the offices of Grantley Adams 
International Airport Inc. 2nd floor, Terminal 1, Grantley Adams International Airport, Christ 
Church, BB 16000, Barbados 


